# **CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL**

Minutes of a meeting of the **Cabinet** held on Monday, 18th October, 2010 in Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

# PRESENT

Councillor W Fitzgerald (Chairman) Councillor R Domleo (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Rachel Bailey, D Brown, F Keegan, A Knowles, J Macrae, P Mason and R Menlove.

Councillors in attendance:

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, M Davies, D Flude, S Furlong, O Hunter, G Merry, B Moran, L Smetham. D Thompson, A Thwaite, G Walton and R Westwood.

### Officers in attendance:

Chief Executive, Assets Manager, Director of Adult Health, Community Health and Wellbeing Services, Director of Children and Families, Borough Solicitor, Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets, Head of HR and Organisational Development, Head of Policy and Performance, Manager of Care4CE, Spatial Planning Manager and Strategic Director Places.

# 68 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor H Gaddum.

# 69 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

## 70 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

Mr L Burton, Chairman of Knutsford Town Plan Implementation Committee, spoke regarding his concerns at the proposed temporary closure of Bexton Court Community Support Centre.

# 71 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

### RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 October 2010 be approved as a correct record.

# 72 KEY DECISION CE10/11-51 CORPORATE ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 2011/2014

(During discussion of this item Councillor D Flude declared a personal interest by virtue of being a member of the Cheshire Local History Association, the Family History Society, Cheshire and Crewe Town History Society.)

Consideration was given to the Corporate Asset Management Plan, setting out Cheshire East's approach to capital investment and disposals. The document, closely linked to the Council's Capital Strategy, showed how the Council was prioritising, targeting and measuring the performance of its capital resources in order to maximise the value of its property assets, to support key cross-cutting activities, initiatives and local and national priorities.

In response to a question regarding consultation to date the Portfolio Holder confirmed that the Asset Management Plan would be the subject of future and further discussions with the Corporate Scrutiny Committee.

# RESOLVED

That the approval be given to the Corporate Asset Management Plan for 2011/2014

# 73 KEY DECISION CE10/11-56 SINGLE EQUALITY AND INCLUSION SCHEME AND ACTION PLAN 2010/2013

Consideration was given to the Single Equality and Inclusion Scheme (SEIS) and Action Plan 2010/2013, and to the Equality Impact Assessment Guidance. The SEIS is a public commitment showing how the Council intends to meet the duties placed on it by equality legislation, relevant to all activities of the Council, employees and Cheshire East citizens.

### RESOLVED

That approval be given to the Single Equality and Inclusion Scheme and Action Plan 2010/2013, and to he Equality Impact Assessment Guidance.

### 74 ANNUAL UNANNOUNCED INSPECTION OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES

(During discussion of this item Councillor D Flude declared a personal interest by virtue of being a School Governor at Pebble Bank and Westminster Street Schools, and of EiC Ltd.)

Consideration was given to the results of a recent inspection of Cheshire East Council Children's Services by OFSTED under Section 138 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006; the findings of the report had been published on 18 August 2010. An action plan to address the areas for development was in the process of being compiled.

# RESOLVED

That the contents of the report be noted, and that regular updates be made on progress to address the areas for development that had been identified.

# 75 DRAFT LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN STRATEGY

Consideration was given to the draft Local Transport Plan Strategy setting out the proposed priorities for transport. The strategy was directly linked to the Sustainable Community Strategy and showed how transport contributes to the wider ambitions of the area.

# RESOLVED

- 1. That the proposed thematic priorities for the Local Transport Plan Strategy - 'ensure a sustainable future' and 'create conditions for business growth' - be noted.
- 2. That approval be given for the draft Local Transport Plan Strategy to be released for public consultation on 19 October.

# 76 FUTURE HOUSING PROVISION IN CHESHIRE EAST

Consideration was given to the requirement for the Council to supply a five year supply of deliverable housing land, to the appropriate figure for that requirement, and to the approval of the Interim Planning Policy for consultation.

At the meeting it was reported that since the agenda had been published an addition had been made to paragraph 2.10 of the Draft Interim Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land (Appendix A, page 295 of the agenda) as follows:-

The availability of a five year land supply is a key consideration in planning appeals for housing development on sites outside settlement boundaries. In determining appeals elsewhere in the country, the continued use of the RSS housing requirement has been accepted by the Inspector as appropriate pending the formal review of the figure through the Local Development Framework process. The use of other figures in the interim could leave the Local Planning Authority open to challenge from the developer or other interested parties.

# RESOLVED

1. That approval be given to the housing requirement figure for a minimum of 1150 net additional dwellings to be delivered annually, to be used pending the adoption of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy.

- 2. That the Council's five year land supply at 1 April 2010 be noted.
- 3. That, subject to the amendment to paragraph 2.10 of the Draft Interim Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land, as detailed above, approval be given to the Interim Planning Policy on the Release of Housing Land for consultation purposes and for it to be used in the determination of planning applications pending its adoption.

# 77 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK CORE STRATEGY ISSUES AND OPTIONS

Consideration was given to the Local Development Framework Core Strategy Issues and Options report. The report had been prepared to generate discussion on the challenges facing the future planning of the Borough over the next twenty years; it included a draft vision for the future of Cheshire East in 2010 and the impact of different strategic objectives. It also looked at three options for housing and jobs growth and how this growth could be distributed to the various towns in Cheshire East.

The Consultation Paper had been considered by the Strategic Planning Board at its meeting on 6 October at which it had recommended the approval of the paper to Cabinet; the comments of the Committee were circulated.

# RESOLVED

- 1. That the comments of the Strategic Planning Board be noted.
- 2. That the Issues and Options Report for the Local Development Framework Core Strategy be approved for consultation purposes.

### 78 RATIONALISATION AND TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF BUILDINGS IN ADULT SERVICES

(During discussion of this item Councillor D Flude declared a personal interest by virtue of being a member of the South Cheshire Alzheimers Society and of Cheshire Advocacy.)

Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Adults, Community, Health and Wellbeing on the closure, and temporary closure, of some buildings in Adult Services; the report to Cabinet on 19 July had outlined a range of options for delivering the same level of service from fewer buildings in Adult Services.

The report also detailed the temporary closure of the Tatton Ward of Knutsford Hospital by the East Cheshire Acute Health Trust. The closure had been considered by the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee on 9 September and at that meeting the Director had indicated that there would be both financial and practice impacts on Cheshire East Council; this report detailed that impact on Bexton Court a community support facility linked to Tatton Ward.

In considering the proposed closures it was confirmed that decisions on the future of both 291 Nantwich Road and on Bexton Court would be the subject of further reports to the Cabinet.

# RESOLVED

- 1. That approval be given to the closure of Jubilee House and the transfer of services to the Hilary Centre once minor works are carried out to ensure the suitability of the Hilary Centre.
- 2. That it be noted that, as a result of discussions with users of 291 Nantwich Road, it is not proposed to close that facility at this stage but to re-examine the future of that building in March 2011.
- 3. That approval be given to the temporary closure of Bexton Court, a Community Support Centre that is linked to Tatton Ward, subject to the consideration of this matter by the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee on 11 November 2010 and discussions with those directly concerned about alternative options.
- 4. That it be noted that currently the East Cheshire Acute Trust is intending to re-open Tatton Ward in January 2011 and Cabinet agrees that Cheshire East Council work with the Trust on its plans for the future of Tatton Ward and link its own approach to Bexton Court to this process.

# 79 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

### RESOLVED

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following item pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing the information.

# 80 MANAGING WORKFORCE CHANGE

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development.

### RESOLVED

1. That Cabinet supports the decision of the Chief Executive to release the employees whose roles are listed as 1 to 66 in

Appendix A of the report under the arrangements agreed in relation to voluntary severance provisions for employees in the Council.

2. That Cabinet notes the two employees listed as 67 and 68 in Appendix A of the report who may become compulsorily redundant and would receive payments under the arrangements agreed in relation to severance provisions for employees.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.20 pm

W Fitzgerald (Chairman)